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30 January 2018
Name Peter Simmenauer
Street Address Unit 4 226 Nepean St
Town Greensborough
State Postcode 3088
Tel - ns
Mob - ns
Email pcsimm@iprimus,com.au 
Re Heidelberg to Eltham Line
Background History Regarding Railway Construction and Railway construction workers in Victoria.

1853 – 1890


From the formation of the Melbourne and Hobson’s Bay Railway Company, the other private railway companies (Melbourne Suburban Railway Company, St Kilda and Brighton Railway Co, The St Kilda to Brighton Railway Co, The Melbourne to Essendon Railway Co, The Geelong and Melbourne Railway Co and the Victorian Railways) all placed contracts with various local construction companies to build their railways. By 1878 all of these railways had been absorbed into the Victorian Railways.

Coinciding with the Gold Rush and a concurrent collapse in railway construction in the United Kingdom; there was no shortage of settlers who had experience in railway construction work; and many returned to their old trade, having failed to find gold.

As the Victorian Railways, commenced the construction, their contractors encouraged, additional navies to come to Australia. Most lived in construction camps, adjacent to their current wok location. It is likely that those who were seen to be slackers etc., were dismissed and thrown out of the camps.


With the completion of the first main lines to Ballarat and Bendigo, many of these workers found themselves out of work. A small number found work with the Victorian Railways as gangers etc. A significant number, however appear to have taken up selection blocks; or found work on other construction projects. Those who became selectors soon found the that, in order to meet the conditions of the Selection Act, they had to return to working as navies; to get an income. So, when the VR, resumed railway construction, using contractors, there was no shortage of skilled workers, who were familiar with the rigors of their trade.


So, from then until 1889/90 all railways constructed in Victoria were constructed by Contractors to the Victorian Railways, who provided their own workforce. This practice continued through to financial collapse of 1889/90.

The system however, had its weaknesses. Government Contracts tended to be let to the lowest bidder, so there were frequently issues resolving claims for unforeseen costs to be paid. Some contractors were awarded several contracts at the same time, resulting in delays of completion of work. 


A full list of contracts was published in an ARHS publication some years ago; and it is of note that, as the 1880s boom progressed, a significant number of Contractors, either failed and the contract had to be re-let, or contractors who only built one railway. One has to assume that they realized they could make a better income elsewhere.

Interestingly, though, there are few indications of contractors rorting the system by winning a contract, declaring themselves bankrupt; and then retendering to complete the work at a higher price.


In 1890, following the financial collapse, the contracting system was abandoned and the Victorian Railways took over the construction of railways themselves, using day laborers. From the workers point of view, little changed, as they had previously been paid by the day and could be dismissed if were seen to be lazy of failed to attend on time at the start of the working day. From their point of view, apart from who was in charge nothing had changed.


From 1893, as part of the various enquiries into the land and property boom. Responsibility, for the construction of new railways was vested in the Railway Construction Branch of the Board of Land and Works. So far as the workers were concerned, nothing had changed.


So there continued to exist a large pool of skilled workers available to work on railway construction, but in the context of the 1889/1890 depression; and subsequent recovery; there would be little opportunity for local residents to find employment, unless they possessed specialized skills or equipment. The two most common were farmers, with a team of horses and a dumpy scoop, who may have found short term employment in forming the actual roadbed for the railway; or, local timber cutters who may have been subcontracted to provide cut sleepers for the railway. However, the Railways were usually very specific in the types of timber and durability of the materials supplied. The same applied to the timber for fencing the land occupied by the railway.

Processes involved in the decision to construct a railway line.
It must be understood that for a railway to be constructed required an Act of Parliament.

This usually was sponsored by the then Minister of Railways. However, long before the Act was prepared a significant amount of preliminary work was required by Surveyors to establish if such a railway was feasible, practical and financially viable. 

The first stage being a running survey, where the surveyors would plot out an approximate route for a line from A-B taking into account the topography, the potential for flooding, maintaining a practical gradient, (usually max 1:40).
They may also have examined the use of the land to establish the potential traffic the line was likely to achieve; potential locations for stations, based on the population and the location of existing settlements. 

Stage 2 would be to conduct a more detailed survey, identifying the locations where bridges would be required, taking into account observable or known flood levels; the amount of; cuts and fills required for cuttings, embankments. Ideally these would largely match; so that there would not be the need to cart in soil to form embankments; or to be left with excess fill.  Locations of Stations, possibly taking into account the pre-existing settlements and roads.
From this information, a more detailed survey map would be prepared, along with a detailed cut and section diagram, indicating, the cuts and fills etc. and the nature of bridges and tunnels required.

At this stage, which may have taken several years, the Minister responsible would introduce a Railway Construction Act into Parliament.

HOWEVER, and it is a big HOWEVER, the volatility of a factional parliament took over. So, the Railway Construction Bill of 1882 was stalled for two years, and by the time it was passed, some 57 additional lines were added to it by Politicians, wanting to curry favor with their electors! In addition, various politicians made speculative purchases of land along the lines. Many were invested in a series of pyramid land banks. Which when it collapsed played a major role in the1889/1890 depression.
In addition, the Railway surveyors found themselves trapped in a mass of producing plans for railways; frequently delaying construction of the lines! It also resulted in various smaller railway contractors becoming insolvent.

Entries in the Railways Annual Report for 1888 notes the completion of the railway from Alphington to Heidelberg on 8/5/1888 the contract having been let to Fergus and Blair on 25/6/1886 
It also mentions the line from Richmond to Alphington, with a contract date of 1886 to John Horne. It must be assumed Horne defaulted as the line was not completed to Clifton Hill in until 1901. The work being completed by the Railway Construction Branch of the Board of Land and Works. 
The Annual Report for 1901/2 notes the completion of the line Heidelberg to Eltham on 5/6/1902 work having been commenced on 24/9/1900.This of course implies that the railway was constructed by the Railway was constructed by the Railway Construction Branch of the Board of Lands and Works; largely using day laborer’s. In the report establishing this arrangement; strong emphasis is placed on providing work for the unemployed. A significant number of whom would have been those previously working for railway contractors; as they had the skills for the task.
Attempts by property holders to have the route of a line altered to pass close to or through their land are rare and usually relate to attempts to capitalize the land are rare, but not unique. It also occurred on the Glen Waverly Line, where a Councilor Jordan attempted to have the route altered and the station named Jordan. He failed to have the route altered, but the station was ultimately named Jordanville.
Similarly, a special train to a property sale at Glen Waverley appears on a poster in 1928, two years before the line opened. 
Sir Thomas Bent, was involved in various schemes to have a railway built to Elwood

As Premier he managed to have a Regional tramway fund for diverted to fund a VR Tramway which ran through his estates.

Later he proposed a railway to Glenroy roughly following the route of the Tullamarine freeway. He justified it on the basis, that it would provide work for those unemployed by the 1889 Depression. The Age pointed out that Bent owned the land at the destination. That cost him his seat in parliament and the Premiership.
Hopefully your searches at PROV will disclose some correspondence on your one.

Images –

1) image 004 Extract Page 186VR Curves and Gradients Book 1928 
You will note that the dates at the top indicate the dates of opening of the various sections of the line. From this you will see that originally the rail route to Heidelberg ran via the Inner Circle line to Victoria Park, where the locomotive ran around the train, before continuing to Heidelberg. It was not until 1901 that the direct route from Princes Bridge was opened.
The Inner Circle line was largely constructed to provide access to Spencer St Station for the lines to Coburg & Somerton, Reservoir, Fitzroy and Collingwood and Heidelberg, all of which were opened in 1888.

All were very much products of the 1880s land boom. The section North Carlton to North Fitzroy, largely became redundant with the construction of the line from Princes Bridge; and competition from cable tram routes running through the inner northern suburbs, along Royal Pde, Lygon & Rathdown Sts, Nicholson St, Brunswick St and Smith St.
In the Speight Vs Syme trial, Alfred Deakin, who was representing Syme, gives two wonderfully scathing descriptions of travel on the line, describing how one could see all four sides of the Exhibition building in the course of the journey; and recounting how, on one occasion he missed the last train, but by catching the cable trams along Collins St and Johnston St, he arrived at Victoria Park, in time to catch his train!
As you are doubtless aware, the direct train route involved two tunnels and several tight curves. Much of the section between North Richmond and Clifton Hill is on a high embankment.
To reach Heidelberg there are several sections where gradients of 1:50 are encountered and to reach Eltham, grades of 1:40 were involved; along with some extremely tight curves; some of 15 chain radii.

A line which required a significant amount of civil engineering skill and expense.

2) Image 001 Eltham Station circa 1910
This is the earliest of three images we have of Eltham station.
At the far left is what is likely to be the Station Master’s residence, and is in a standard style used from about 1910. The small weatherboard, scilion roofed building is probably either, a lamp room or van goods shed. Lamp rooms were usually placed well away from the station building; as they contained drums of kerosene, then used in platform lights, signal lights and station staff hand lamps.
The wooden double picket gates and earth ramp would have been for the reception and delivery of large parcels etc. to platform.

The Station building itself, is made up of three 8ft x12ft portable buildings. Many had their origins in the 1880s boom, when numerous country stations were built, which were never likely to see much volume of traffic. Significant numbers were recycled, in the following decades to create station buildings at other locations; especially in the outer suburbs of Melbourne. One of the few surviving sets is at Heyington on the Glen Waverly Line. 
The enclosed section, closest to the camera would have formed the Ladies waiting room; it appears to have retained its riveted iron fireplace, as the circular chimney can be seen. The high corrugated iron fence concealed the female toilets, which would have been accessed through a door, adjacent to the chimney.

The open section in the center formed the general waiting area. 

The enclosed area at the far end of the building, contained the station office, ticket window in the far end wall; and the parcels office. The ticket window may have also been protected by a small verandah. It is difficult to see, because of the structure on the platform, but behind it is the station staff door to the platform. Passenger entry to the platform would have been through a standard picket gate, which again is partially obscured by the structure on the platform.

You will note the rectangular lamp on the wall of the ladies waiting room. This raises the question, as to whether the station was manned at all hours. Similar lamps, with a moveable red glass shutter, which intending passengers could use to stop a train after dark.

The carriage set in the center track is typical of the suburban carriages used in the early 20th century. The two center bogie carriages are of a design dating back to the late 1870s; they are American style with end platforms and curved clerestory roofs. Entry and exit would have been via the end platforms. The interior was open with seats on either side of a central passageway. Most had a central partition to separate 1st and 2nd class passengers.
The two outer carriages are suburban guard’s vans, with passenger accommodation. They appear to be of compartment style, with doors to either two or three compartments, but it is likely there was a central isle. The door at the end tends to confirm this.  

Further to the right are several goods wagons and a goods shed with a goods platform

This is a difficult image to date, but there are two important clues; the woman in the foreground, with the pusher is dressed in a style common before WW1. The other becomes self-evident in the next image

3) 002 Eltham Station circa 1923
Electrification of the line to from Heidelberg occurs in 1923, two years after the wires reached Heidelberg.

The platform has been extended and the facing is now supported by precast concrete uprights, with precast concrete balks forming the face of the platform.
The additions to the station office in 001 have resulted in a slightly elevated signal box; which probably indicates 001 may have been pre1912, when the line was extended to Hurstbridge.
Also, a larger verandah has been provided adjacent to the booking office.
Immediately in front of the signal box an opening in the platform face has been installed to accommodate the various point rods and signal cables.
In this image, however, it is evident that the overhead wires are in place. Unusually though, they are supported by braced timber poles, rather than lattice steel uprights.it is not clear why this was done; unless the demand for steel had exceeded the demand. It is known, however that the Glen Waverley Line (1929 -1930) and the Altona Line (1926) also had timber poles.
A dead-end platform has also been provided to accommodate trains terminating at Eltham. A mixed set of Tait and Swing door cars occupy the back platform.

It is probable that the works are not complete, as there is no evidence of platform lighting.

We can also see the gent’s toilet block at the far end of the platform.

4) 003 Eltham Station 1960
From the following diagram we can assume that the 1923 largely remained unchanged to 1960, when totally new station was created. As the dead-end platform had been done away with; access to the platform was via a subway with a ramp coming up to the now island platform. Effectively the whole station layout has been reversed. The booking office is now visible at the down end of the building. The signal box has been incorporated into the new building. The waiting room would be behind this. The verandah has been rebuilt and enlarged. A bicycle shelter has been provided. The overhead wires are now supported steel girders.
As will be evident in the following sketch plans, the two platforms are staggered. Examination of the face of the Up platform indicates, it is probably the original 1923 platform. The signal and points tunnel remain in situ; and some of the point rods are visible between the two tracks.
5) 005 Sketch signal diagrams of Eltham Station of Eltham 1958 and 1960. These drawings were prepared by a member over a period covering the late 1950s and early 1960s.
The first is dated 13/12/1958; with a note that the new layout dates from May 1960. The second dates from 4/9/1960. The numbers below the signals, probably relate to the signal levers in the frame.

As noted above the two platforms are staggered. This may have been to the due to the cost of excavating additional land and providing a less tight curve for trains negotiating the approach to the level crossing beyond the station.
As a result, the new station building is not on the site of the original one. This is a quite unusual layout and possibly indicates constraints of the site.

Interestingly the number of sidings in the yard has been increased.

This probably does not indicate an increase in goods traffic; especially as the relocated goods shed is smaller. It is more likely that the two sidings closest to the platform may have been to stable electric train sets, ready of early morning services, to Melbourne; a role the dead platform may have previously filled.

It is also of note that all sidings possess derail points. The yard is on a 1:400 grade towards Melbourne.
6) 
Extracts from 1935 Suburban Working Time Table   Eltham TT 1935 001 - 005

I have also included these time tables to give you some idea of the services on the line through a week. Down trains are from Melbourne Up trains to Melbourne. 
It is of note that there are some movements, in the early morning from Eltham to Hurstbridge, tending to confirm my suggestion that some train sets were stabled at Eltham overnight.
The timetables also tend to reflect social habits of the 1935; especially at weekends.

The Symbol NC for Wattle Glen indicates it was a no-one in charge station.

The symbol ES indicates that it was an Electric Staff station; indicating that at that time Heidelberg to Hurstbridge was single track.
7)  In sorting though part of our image collection, to be re- filed, I located three additional images relevant to your request.

Heidelberg Pic 007 – This shows Heidelberg station in 1901.As you can see the station building, behind the trees appears to be another collection of portable buildings. A passenger train, with destination board unfortunately is not readable, but is probably Princess Bridge. There is a quite busy goods yard; with various types of wagons. The two closest to the camera would probably be for farm produce, going to market. There is a standard Derrick (stick) crane. The wagon in front of the church, appears to be covered by a tarpaulin, indicating it may be carrying bagged grain. Much of the land beyond the Cyprus trees appears to be open farmland.
Clifton Hill Pic 2003 – It is possible that this image was taken on opening day, as a man is attending to one of the signals. The high embankment, for the line is evident, both in the approach to the station; and beyond it on the approach to Victoria Park.

Collingwood Pic 007 – again this image may have been taken shortly after opening of the line. Although it may be as late as 1921, just prior to electrification in 1921. Note that the verandah roof frames are yet to receive their cladding, The style of the building; which appears to yet have received its roof; suits the later date.
8) I have also included a list of all contractors mentioned un the text along with a map of the cable network. 

Contracts identified as being by the Railway Construction Branch of the Board of Land and Works.

1)  For Ballast - T. Adams Quarry Alphington.

2) For Construction and Erection of girders at Burgundy St Bridge. – Dorman and Long Melbourne

3) 16 Rolled Steel beams for the Diamond Creek Bridge -  Milliken Bros 11 Broadway, New York. Shipped on the steamer ‘MIMIRO’ of the Tyser Line sailed June 1901. (BHP Newcastle did not come on line until a decade later, hence the need to import such items)

These are the only contracts we have been able to identify. Even those do not appear in the VR Annual Reports.
Based on standard rates for a Member of the General Public, our charge for this work is 

Consultation Fee: $5.00
First Hour $20.00 plus  x 6½ hours @ $12.00 =$72.00
Total $77 Ex GST
Regards
Ian Jenkin. 
ARHS Archives Officer
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